TEN	FRECEIVED	SUBMISSION 2	House of representatives Standing Committee on Economics, Finance and Public Administration Submission No: 2
11-4	Hacka & Representatives Strating committee on Economics, Finances Public Administration	McCrindle Research P	Date Received:

Superannuation and the Under 40's: Summary Report

Research report on the attitudes and views of Generations X and Y on superannuation.

Prepared by:

Mark McCrindle, Social Researcher, McCrindle Research Pty Ltd

18 July 05

McCrindle Research Pty Ltd ABN 99 105 510 772 Ì

L

McCrindle Research

McCrindle Research Pty Ltd is a research and consulting organisation, which is focussed on generational and cultural research.

They use social research, particularly qualitative methods to get a greater understanding of the attitudes and feelings behind the behaviours and opinions of the emerging Generations X and Y.

The Founder and Director of McCrindle Research is Mark McCrindle. Mark graduated from UNSW with a BSc (Psychology), and he has a Masters degree majoring in Social Trends. Mark is a full member of the Market Research Society of Australia and is qualified with the research industry's highest accreditation: QPMR (Qualified Practising Market Researcher).

Mark has conducted research and spoken for organisations across most industry sectors (Financial, Telecommunications, FMCG, Technology and IT, Retail, Hospitality, Education, Government, and the Non-profit sector).

Generation X (aged in their mid 20's to late 30's) and Generation Y (teenagers and early 20's) comprise the largest generations of Australians making knowledge in how to manage, motivate and market to these new generations essential for any organisation. McCrindle Research analyses these constantly changing generations, and with the knowledge of these future generations, provide insights into emerging trends and the future they will create.

For further information contact:

()

Mark McCrindle McCrindle Research Pty Ltd P: (02) 9980 1777 F: (02) 9980 1799 E: mark@markmccrindle.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1.	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	.2
	2.	BACKGROUND	.4
	2.1	The Brief	. 4
	2.2	Who comprises the emerging generations?	. 5
	2.3	What makes the new generations so important?	5
	3.	FINDINGS	.6
	3.1	How are they different from other generations?	6
	3.2	Overall impressions of the superannuation industry	8
	3.3	What are their attitudes to superannuation funds?	.8
	3.4	What most frustrates them with superannuation?	9
	3.5	What are their top priorities with financial products?	13
	3.6	What motivates them financially?	.15
	3.7	How can superannuation funds best communicate with them?	16
	4.	CONCLUSIONS AND FUTURE STUDIES	17
	5.	REFERENCES	18
A	PPEN	DICES	
		Appendix A: Qualifying questionnaire and data	19
		Appendix B: Interview questions	21
	• •	Appendix C: ASFA Presentation Slides	22

_____3

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In summary,

- 1. Generation Xers were happy to have the opportunity to discuss their views on superannuation.
- 2. They recognise superannuation as a necessary, and valued part of their life.
- 3. They feel it is a system in change and not without fault. They have some frustrations based on their experiences, and in various areas of the industry.
- 4. They are self aware of their financial weaknesses and expressed clear priorities.
- 5. Three financial motivations were apparent above others and flow from their outlook on life.
- 6. They feel that organisations in general market to a Gen X stereotype rather than to the real individuals. They have clear ideas on how communication from superannuation companies can be improved.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Brief

Mark McCrindle was commissioned to conduct research into the attitudes and behaviours of young people regarding superannuation. It was recognised that both superannuation, and the demographics of those with superannuation funds, have undergone much change over the last decade. However there is very little information of the attitudes, frustrations, priorities and motivations of young people in regard to finances, and superannuation. Therefore this qualitative research project was undertaken.

2.2 Who comprise the new generations?

Generation X comprises those aged between 24 and 40. Generation Y in this study refers to older teenagers and those in their early twenties. This study focussed on the working age young people that crossover both these generations.

Description	Born	Age	(% of population)
Seniors	Before 1925	80+	3%
Builders	1926–1945	60 – 79	15%
Boomers	1946-1964	41 – 59	25%
Generation X	1965 1981	24 – 40	25%
Generation Y	1982–2000	5 – 23	26%
Generation Z	2001+	<5	6%

(Source: ABS Yearbook and abs.gov.au - 2005 figures)

2.3 What makes the new generations so important?

Enormous:

()

While the common misconception is that the Baby Boomers were the largest generation ever, the population table above shows that the generations are getting larger. So with Xers making up over one quarter of the population, and with the labour force being expanded by 200,000 Gen Y's each year, we have the largest generation of income earners ever. In addition they have a longer life expectancy than previous generations: today "boys are expected to live to 77.4 years, and girls to 82.6 years. A century ago it was 55.2 years and 58.8 years respectively" (The Age, 23/6/2004 p8). In 2042 it is projected to be 82.5 and 87.5 (Intergenerational Report, 2003). As a result, our median age has been rising, from 32 in the 1991 Census, to 35 in the 2001 census (www.abs.gov.au).

Earnings:

Generation X because of their life stage has the highest labour force participation rate of any cohort in society.

Over the last decade this generation has moved out of school and tertiary education and into the labour force. While Gen Xers have not yet reached their peak income earning years, they are still earning salaries and thus contributing to superannuation.

The superannuation industry is undergoing massive growth however the growth over subsequent decades is expected to accelerate even more due to the Gen X and Y factor. For the first time we have a generation with superannuation from their first day of working life, and so with 9% (with many forecasting a rise beyond 15% over the next few decades) of their salary being invested, for the next 40 to 50 years, this generation is now a priority for the industry.

Education:

With the highest ever school retention rate to Year 12 at 75.7% (ABS 2005 Schools Australia 4221.0) and with a significant number completing some form of post-secondary

study, we now have the most educated generation ever. However of more relevance to business is the consumer education and empowerment this generation possesses. They are streetwise, and savvy consumers with high expectations and little brand or company loyalty. Therefore hype won't cut it with the informed youth of today. A deeper level of understanding of their needs and values, and greater sophistication in engaging them must be utilised if they are to be reached.

3. FINDINGS

3.1 How are they different from other generations?

Summary table:

	Builders Generation	Baby Boomers	Generations X & Y
	Born before WWII	Born 1946-1964	Born since 1965
	Aged 60's & 70's	Aged 40's & 50's	20's & 30's
	Absolutes	Some absolutes	Few absolutes
	Security	Variety	Variety
	Work ethic	Freedom	Fun
Motivations	Country	Individuality	Own-community
	Advancement	Achievement	Self-discovery
	Responsible	Relatable	Relational
Decision Making	Authorities	Experts	Friends
	Reputations	Information	Anecdotes
	Brand-loyal	Brand-switchers	Little brand loyalty
Earning & Spending	Conservative- savers	Confident- investors	Uncertain- spenders
	Long-term needs	Medium-term goals	Short-term wants
	Pay up front	Credit-savvy	Credit-dependent
Learning Styles	Auditory	Auditory/Visual	Visual/Kinaesthetic
	Content-driven	Analysis-focussed	Narrative/Metaphors
	Monologue	Dialogue	Multi-sensory
Marketing & Communication	Prescriptive Mass Above the line	Descriptive Direct Below the line	Participative Viral Through their friends
Training environment	Classroom style Formal Quiet atmosphere	Round-table style Planned Relaxed ambience	Unstructured Spontaneous Interactive
Management & Leadership	Control Authority Analysers	Cooperation Competency Doers	Consensus Creativity Feelers

Source: McCrindle Research - The Generation Map 2005)

3.2 Overall impressions of the superannuation industry

This generation have only known superannuation as part of their working life. They don't question its existence, and are in fact supportive and pleased with its existence in their lives. It acts as imposed self-discipline and financial conservatism that they are surprisingly relaxed about. They know their weaknesses of living too much for the now, and so they like the imposed support that superannuation is. However they rely on it and expect that in its current form it will look after them, just as they rely unquestioningly on workers' compensation, seat belts, and guardrails in this protective society. Therefore they take little ownership of their financial future, and are aware of some of the weaknesses with superannuation, but because of its low priority in their lives they are not overly provoked by them.

3.3 What are their attitudes to superannuation funds?

As expected, participants thought very little about their retirement and so placed a low priority on superannuation.



Preference:

There was a strong acknowledgement that saving was important. It was something that they needed to do. They realised that to be financially secure later in life, and upon retirement they should put money away now. They also saw the benefit of compounding interest. However there was a big gap between this realisation, and the motivation to take action.

"Saving, and super and stuff is what you should do but you don't really see the benefit of it now. It's like eating healthy and that- there's heaps of things you are supposed to do but who does. Other things are more important right now? Participant P1

Most of the participants also held these same conflicting ideas: that saving now for retirement is important, but they don't want to do it. For young people today decisions are not made on the basis of facts and truth, but preference.



They have grown up in a world where their parents' generation have constantly thrown out advice as slogans: "Click clack front and back...Don't drink and drive...Slip, slop, slap...Swim between the flags..." They know these mantras are for their own good. They know there is truth to them. However with Xers, what is preferred is done. While every participant knew the benefits of superannuation, and the wisdom of voluntary contributions, not one was, or would do it because while it was true in their head, it was not in their heart. The arguments they have heard have not been convincing enough for them to take action. And the battle is not won with more data, but by altering their preference- to change it from a "should do" to a "want to".

Pragmatism:

Their attitude was very pragmatic. They had no idealism regarding their financial future.

"Things will get tough for us financially, I know that. But we will get by. We'll do what we have to get by." Participant P5

There was a feeling that if finances are tight in their future, they will then take the necessary action. However they don't want to take immediate financial pain for the promise of long-term gain. This pragmatic attitude to finances and life is added to by the fact that money is not the primary driving force in their lives.

"Money is important sure, but it is a means to an end...you've got to have it because it is how our world works." Participant P18

Community:

A third attitude that came through strongly was the focus on their own cohort's experiences. Regularly participants would tell of their friends' experiences. These experiences shared by friends strongly shaped the participants own perceptions and decisions.

"It was my workmate who answered my questions about how I wanted the maney invested. Linad no real idea."

While being well educated through the formal education system, and pretty savvy as customers in the marketplace, their financial education was lacking, and they knew it. They didn't feel knowledgeable enough to make independent decisions and they felt no stigma asking friends. Community is very strong amongst this generation and even traditionally private issues like personal finances are up for discussion amongst Xers. The participants were remarkably well informed about some of their friends' superannuation issues.

3.4 What most frustrates them with superannuation?

This area of the interviews invariably got strong responses. Superannuation rarely made it onto the radar screen of their lives, illustrated by the finding that only 1 participant had endeavoured to check out his fund's website. However there were many frustrations regarding super – most of them directed at the system rather than their particular fund.

In analysing the interview transcripts we found their frustrations could be categorised into 9 areas. Here we look at the top 5:

1. **Practicality**:

The young people interviewed wanted practical benefits from contributing to superannuation and they felt they got none. They understand its entire purpose is for retirement however they still wanted practical outcomes in their current situations.

"I'm buying a house soon and i need money now. I know I'll need money when I'm old buy I need it now too - why is then more important than now?" Participant P15 "40 years is a long time to stay with the one company. They'll need to make it worth my while."

When asked what practical benefits could be provided by funds there were various ideas from discounts on other financial products, more financial education whether it be in the form of easily followed booklets or seminars, even the suggestion of movie tickets. This generation live an economy where loyalty to a company is rewarded by discounts or

loyalty programs of numerous forms. They are not altruistic and will take their business to where they are best understood, and provided for.

2. Accessibility:

The general consensus was that information on their account and their fund was infrequent, hard to understand, and difficult to access. Every participant had internet access although only 1 had accessed their fund's website. Web access to their account details was an essential but it had to be kept at the front of their mind.

"I definitely would suss it out if I knew their web address. Maybe I have it already but it's never been promoted." Participant P1

However online access was not the only form mentioned. Being able to email questions, phone support ("I like 1800 numbers"), seminars, and printed material were all mentioned. It is not just access to information they want, but access to relevant and understandable information.

"They send me statements and brochures but it doesn't mean much to me." Participant P22

3. Flexibility

()))

This is the generation that does not expect and will not have long term jobs in the one industry. It is a time, and a generation of contracting, short-term jobs, and work across different industries. Therefore flexibility in being able to transfer superannuation across jobs, and industries is desired. More Xers work in trades than the rest of the labour force, (Xers in trades comprise 17.2% of all working Xers compared to 13.1% of the rest of the labour force) and in clerical jobs (22% compared to 15.8%) and as labourers (12% compared to 9%) so they are more likely to have an industry superannuation fund (ABS Labour Force Australia, 1997). Also they are less represented as managers (1.6% compared to 9% of older workers) and as professionals (11.7% compared to 19.8%). Therefore it is particularly the industry based superannuation funds that need to provide this flexibility.

"I have a few superannuation accounts and I can't even tell you exactly who with and how many: I fooked into combining them but there was lots of paperwork involved." It is an entrepreneurial generation and Gen Xers, and even more Gen Y's are the most likely of any cohort in history to start their own business. Therefore the flexibility needs to exist for ease of transfer between funds, and the ability to pay into their current fund if they self employ.

4. Transparency

As noted earlier there exists amongst this generation a mistrust of the system. They feel ill informed about the rules and policies, which govern superannuation. They expressed a lack of understanding of their employer's role in making contributions, and a (correct) perception that there were constant changes to the system, although they generally couldn't name specific changes.



They wanted more transparency in the reporting of performance results and especially comparisons between funds managers on their results. Gen Xers understandably compared superannuation to the other prominent financial product on their radar: home loans. They appreciated the constant reporting of home loan rates and comparisons but found superannuation compared poorly.

"I see home loan charts in every paper I look at but never know how my super is going compared to others." Participant P21

To what extent young people will actually read comparisons of fund managers' performance remains to be seen, however it is clear that they perceive there is a lack of transparency in the industry at both a policy level, and a company level.

5. Security

Those surveyed were (with a few exceptions) unaware of the investment choice they had selected. Discussions showed they were certainly not risk averse and so financial security was not a great concern to them. After all, many hardly even considered the money to be their own.

"I know it gets paid in and it is mine but I can't get it for decades and can't even imagine the day I will get it so it's doesn't seem (mine)." Panyupant P15

However they were insecure about the system. Comments about the "goal posts being moved", the age at which their funds could be accessed, changes about whether they could receive a lump sum were common. They have grown up in an age with constant legislative and rule changes such as what is required to get a driver's licence, admission to university, even how tax is paid. Therefore they are sure their superannuation will be fiddled with.

Participant F28

ve heard about lots of changes and I'm sure there are many more to

The other categories of frustrations had to do with:

Procedural issues (job ads and employers not distinguishing between salary and package including super, having to fill in forms and contracts on the first day of a job without adequate information etc).

Numerous accounts (they had lost track of previous superannuation accounts, difficulty in combining accounts etc).

Choice constraints (wanting to choose their own superannuation rather than have it set by the employer or industry).

Legislation complaints (various issues regarding the government's motives in superannuation, as an income earner and pension saver rather than to help retirees).

3.5 What are their top priorities with financial products?

Immediate Needs:

All of the financial discussions with Xers focussed on immediate or medium term needs. Saving was a part of their daily reality but only to achieve a real outcome (buying a car, moving out of home etc). Saving for "the future" or "retirement" while acknowledging the wisdom of it, was not actualised because they were so far off they lacked realism.

> "It is a case of step by step- I'll get there (long term financial security) but there are other needs before then." Participant P17

Any financial products that can meet immediate needs and goals while having long-term savings benefits will succeed. Some immediate needs like financial education, financial security, and achieving financial goals can be well met through superannuation contributions. However those interviewed saw no connection between superannuation and their current life.



While there is only cognitive recognition of the need to plan for the future, little action will be taken to prepare for it. The fact is that by saving now they are doing themselves a massive favour- that it is one linear life, one journey, and they will be no exception to the rules of aging, and retirement. So this is a message that needs to be communicated to them, and at a much deeper level.

Identity:

Being able to identify with the superannuation product, and the company providing it is important. This demographic is buying products that suit their lifestyle, attitude, and outlook, and they are buying from companies who understand them. The language, image, and approach used by the financial industry have little in common with today's youth. If given the choice young people will do business with those who resonate with what they are about.

"I'm not into the stuff they send me. It's pretty irrelevant to me."

"It is boring stuff. Some mail you look forward to getting, and some stuff like bank statements and this (superannuation fund communications) is boring. Even junk mail is interesting..." Participant P16

No surprises here however statements from mobile phone companies were not met with the same degree of disinterest. Also a number of those interviewed mentioned that they are "into junk mail" which is totally unsolicited but deemed interesting thus to some extent they can identify with it.

ŧ.

Framework:

Thirdly the Gen Xers wanted, in their pragmatic style, a financial organisation that sets a framework for them to accomplish their financial goals. They want to be effectively guided by professionals towards a positive outcome. They don't want unguided freedom, or unlimited choices. Too many choices for them are as bad as too few. They want to be in a system that works to their advantage and helps them achieve their goals. This is one benefit expressed by many in home loans- it would force them to save. Home loans provided a framework whereby they were forced in the short term to make payments that would bring about a long-term beneficial financial outcome. This framework is provided by the superannuation industry too.

"I think it is good that I'm forced to have some of my earnings go into super." Participant P19

3.6 What motivates them financially?

Authenticity:

The overall response to this question is that they are turned off and tuned out to hype. This isn't soft drink or fashion but a product on which their future financial position depends. They've heard all the lines, and they easily detect marketing-ese. With finances they want to stay clear of fads instead searching for stability and most importantly authenticity.

The big names don't attract them. Sticking to the big names or relying on authority figures served their grandparents well- but not Xers. What counts more is candour and perceived reliability. Loyalty can be shown by this generation but not to a brand or a company- but to a person who represents the company well. Such trust is earned.

"I need to know that they are true to what they are on about. I'll stick with them (the superannuation fund) for sure but they have to be real. I like straight answers and simple explanations." Participant P11

Outcomes:

As found in previous questions, they are motivated by outcomes. They want to know what the results of their inputs will be. They want to see a compelling case of the benefit of extra contributions in terms of outcomes. Most stated they knew the benefits of saving

early, and compounding interest, but had not seen a case study or simple presentation of it. This generation have a practical perspective and want to see with their own eyes what their own situation will turn out like- or could turn out like based on their choices now.



Life Balance:

Nearly all of their decisions are based on what will work for them now. What motivates them in choices is life balance- they want it all. Finances simply provide the means to live with independence, style, adventure, or whatever they are chasing. Their net worth is not an amount they know or care about in its own right. Their money funds their lifestyle.

To this end they will choose jobs that pay less but give a better quality of life. Indeed a Manpower Inc study of call centre workers, 80% of whom are Gen Xers found that "salary ranks sixth in the factors considered important when deciding to accept a job...Training, management style, work schedule, employee activities, and benefits all come before wages for Australian call centre staff"

The same motivations guide their investment decisions.

3.7 How can superannuation funds best communicate with them?

When talking to Xers about marketing, or other communication materials they receive, their focus is more on the presentation, style, and tone, than on its content. Participants could recall little of the information they had ever received, but could give an overall response to the feel, and their perception of it. Obviously the format they use predominantly in their own communication to peers is electronic. Whether it is via email, ICQ, online chat, or SMS messaging from their mobile, instant electronic messaging is the lifeblood of their relationships. However this is not its sum total. They want phone access, face-to-face explanations via seminars, and printed material. Peers influence most of their decisions, and peer feedback spreads virally – from one Xer to another. This word-of-mouth communication is very effective amongst this generation of connected friends.

Real:

Other key features of ideal communication from companies were that it had to be real. As discussed earlier, it is a hype averse generation. It had to be real or true in its content, but also in its style. If it was in a format or tone they couldn't relate too, it would little impact.

Raw:

They wanted raw information. Over-manufactured marketing, and slick, glossy brochures got the thumbs down. They want material that is fresh, for them, and very now.

Relational:

As a very relationally focussed cohort, they want communications to be relational also. They don't want to be told what to do as much as have it demonstrated – ideally through anecdotes, or examples from their own cohort. They can relate to the story of another 20-something, and this motivates them.

Responsive:

Their communication style is not one way but responsive so this is key in any company material. They want to be engaged, and to be able to respond, or to have their specific issues addressed.

"I have a few superannuation accounts and I can't even tell you exactly who with and how many. I looked into combining them but there was lots of paperwork involved," Participant P7

4 Conclusions and future studies

In summary it is suggested that:

The concerns raised by this generation who enjoy enacting their consumer sovereignty by changing brands/businesses be **further studied and addressed**.

Projections be worked out regarding the **likely financial state** of this generation based on current contributions, bearing in mind they are averse to voluntary contributions and this behaviour is unlikely to voluntarily change.

Existing products and principles be fine tuned to **meet the felt needs** rather than the real needs of Gen X.

Communications be **road tested by the end users** themselves. Rather than design materials for them, design it with them.

Generation X, who over the next 2 or 3 decades will hold the majority of superannuation funds, be consulted at fund, industry, and government levels to allow ownership and involvement in what is their financial future.

Studies be conducted to find **differing behaviours and financial attitudes** with non-urban young people, and younger, school age Generation Y.

6. **REFERENCES**

Australian Bureau of Statistics, 1999. Australian Social Trends ABS Cat. No. 4102.0 Australian Bureau of Statistics, 2002. Demographic Statistics. ABS Cat. No. 3101.0 Barna. G., 1995. Generation Next. Regal Books, California. Herceg, R., 1998. Seven Myths and Realities of Generation X. Pophouse , Sydney. Intergenerational Report, Treasury Papers 2003 Lopiano-Misdom, J., De Luca, J., 1997. Street Trends. Harper Collins, New York. Mackay, H., 1997. Generations. Pan Macmillan, Sydney. Raines, C., Zemke, R., Filipczak, B., 2000. Generations at Work. Amacom, New York. The Age, 18 February 2004 Domain p5 Single Minded The Sydney Morning Herald, 18 June 2003 p1 Class of 91 Grows up. The Sydney Morning Herald, 22 June 2003 p8 Only 30 but Life's Gone Bad Already. Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) Yearbook . (2001). ABS Cat. No. 1301.0 ABS Labour Force Australia (1997) ABS 6203.0 Superfunds Magazine (2000) October, Survival of the Friendliest. Smith and Clurman (1997) Rocking the Ages, Harper Collins ABS Youth Australia, A Social Report (1997) ABS 4111.0 Yankelovich Report (1997) Generational Marketing, Yankelovich Partners Inc ABS Australian Social Trends (1999) ABS 4102.0

Appendix A: Qualifying questionnaire

McCRINDLE RESEARCH

Qualitative research on superannuation

The intention of this survey is to provide information on superannuation. All information is anonymous.

1. Please state your age:



2. Which of the following best describes your situation?

Working full time Working part time Working casual hours Not currently in paid work

oui	า รถ	u

3. How many superannuation accounts do you have?

4. What industry are you working in?

5.	Do you have access to the internet? No Yes	
6.	How often do you use the internet? Less than 3 times per week More than 3 times per week	
7.	Have you ever visited the website of y No Yes THANKYOU. YOUR INF	PUT IS GREATLY APPRECIATED.

ANALYSIS OF QUESTIONNAIRE

DEMOGRAPHICS

9. Please state your age:

17 - 19	10%
20 - 22	43.3%
23 - 25	36.6%
26 - 28	10%

The majority of individuals surveyed were aged between 20 and 25 (80%).

WORK STATUS

2.

4.

6

Which of the following best describes your situation: Working full time 73.3% Working part time 20% Working casual hours 0.7% Not currently in paid work 0%

Our working status results roughly matched the demographic in wider society.

SUPERANNUATION

5 How many superannuation accounts do you have:

0	0%
1	40%
2+	33.3%
Unsure	26.6%

INTERNET USAGE

Do you have access to the Internet?		
	NO	0%
	YES	100%

How often do you use the Internet?	
Less than 3 times per week	16.7%
More than 3 times per week	83.3%

7 Have you ever visited the website of your superannuation fund?

NO	96.6%
YES	3.4%

Appendix B: Interview Questions

The following questions were used as a formal base for discussions. They were asked of all participants but formed only a structure to each interview. The majority of responses came from follow-up questions. These open ended questions were designed to cover 5 areas (attitudes, frustrations, priorities, motivations, and communications).

Interview questions:

- 1. Do you think much about your financial position upon retirement?
- 2. What issues concern you when you think about finances and your future?
- 3. How is the superannuation industry meeting your financial needs?
- 4. If you could change anything about the superannuation industry, what would that be?
- 5. What matters most to you when thinking about superannuation?
- 6. What is most important to you when choosing financial products?
- 7. What would you need to be able to make better decisions regarding superannuation?
- 8. If someone were to motivate you to make a financial choice, how would they do it?
- 9. How does your superannuation fund currently communicate with you?
- 10. What improvements would a financial company need to make to better communicate with you?

Appendix C: Presentation Slides

The following slides were presented at the ASFA WA State Conference in Perth. Slide 1



21

H





¥...





Practicality
 Accessibility

Flexibility

Transparency

Security

<u>.</u>





!_







Ļ.,